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ADDENDUM No. 1  

 
Sealed Bid # 12-5602 

Annual Contract 
Handling and Disposal Service of Municipal Dewatered Wastewater Sludge, Ash, and 

Miscellaneous Materials for Cobb County Water Reclamation Facilities 
 
 

DATE: October 17, 2011 
 
 
Page 1 of 16 
 
The following addendum hereby amends and/or modifies the Proposal Documents and 
specifications as originally issued for this project.  All proposers are subject to the provisions of this Addendum. 
 

Include this original form inside your proposal package. 
Proposers shall acknowledge receipt of this addendum. 

 
This Addendum consists of: 
 

• Minutes of the October 12, 2011 Pre-Bid Meeting 
• Pre-Bid Meeting Attendee List 
• Site Visit Dates and Times 
• Chemical Analysis Reports 
• Sludge Production Spreadsheets 
 

All bids must be received before 12:00 (noon) by the Bid Opening date.  Bids shall be delivered to Cobb County 
Purchasing Department, 1772 County Services Parkway, Marietta, GA  30008.   
 
Electronic / faxed bid response will not be considered. 
 
 
I acknowledge that I have received Addendum No. 1 
 

Sealed Bid # 12-5602 
Annual Contract 

Handling and Disposal Service of Municipal Dewatered Wastewater Sludge, Ash, and 
Miscellaneous Materials for Cobb County Water Reclamation Facilities 

 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Company Name 
 
               
Signature                            Date Sent to Purchasing 

____ 

 

Please Print Name 
                                                             ______ 

 
 

Please sign, date, and return this form ONLY to: 
Cobb County Purchasing Department 

Fax #: 770-528-1154 
E-Mail: purchasing@cobbcounty.org 

 
Please note: The deadline for questions is: October 18, 2011 by 5:00 pm 

Any questions received after this deadline will not be considered. 
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Addendum 1 
Annual Contract 

Sealed Bid #12-5604 
Full Service Maintenance Agreement- Electrical/Mechanical and 

Electronic Equipment Repairs 
 
Questions from Pre-Bid Meeting 
 
 
Question 1 Is there a specific number of trailers required at each location? 
 
Answer 1 No.  The requirements are that there be sufficient trailers available at the site to ensure the 
process does not have to be delayed due lack of trailers to accept the sludge.  Volume of sludge production and 
even the time of day can vary due to a number of reasons outside of our control.  The Noonday facility usually 
operates with four trailers and the Northwest facility operates with 3 to 4 trailers per day. 
 
Question 2 Is there a specific trailer size required; can the hauler use larger trailers to reduce the number  
  of hauls?   
 
Answer 2: There is not a required size.  Current trailer length being used is 28 feet.  Up to 30 feet should be  
  workable.  A site visit is recommended to confirm both trailer length and tractor/trailer height  
  clearances. 
 
Question 3 What are the times for loading? 
 
Answer 3:   The facilities operate 24/7, year round.  Normal loading times start at 6:30 am and stop around 

2:30 pm on a Monday through Friday schedule.  Off hour operations and Weekend/Holiday 
sludge loading operations do occur for various reasons and the hauling party must be prepared 
for such requirements.  They are expected to be the  exception. 

 
Question 4:   Does the spreadsheet containing the number of hauls and the weights include the misc. items 

and ash as well as the sludge? 
 
Answer 4:   Yes 
 
Question 5:   Are visits to the sites available? 
 
Answer 5:   Visits to the sites are available and very much encouraged.  We would like to combine as many 

tours as possible to minimize interruption of the facility operations.   The tour is set up for 
Thursday, October 20, 2011 at 10:00am.  We will visit both sites starting at the Northwest WRF.  
Northwest WRF at  3740 Hwy. 293, Kennesaw, GA, 30144, (770)917-5194 followed by the   
Noonday WRF at 415 Shallowford Road, Kennesaw, GA 30144, (770)591-3165. 

 
 
Question 6:   What is the start date for this contract? 
 
Answer 6:   The current contracts expire on October 31, 2011.  The start date for this contract will be  
  November 1, 2011. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Question 7:  Are the contracts going to be combined (hauling and disposal) from now on?  
 



  

Answer 7:    If the combined contract runs smoothly and economically, it will probably continue to be a 
combined contract.  However, the County reserves the right to separate the hauling and 
disposal facets of the contract for upcoming contracts, or to combine even further the 
hauling/disposal requirements if such proves to be advantageous to the County.   

 
Question 8: What are normally scheduled loading hours? 
 
Answer 8:   See Answer 3 
 
 
Question 9:   Are “Yard Dogs” required? 
 
Answer 9:   Yes 
 
Question 10: If there is an accident with or damage to the Yard Dog, who pays? 
 
Answer 10: Working on response.  Response will follow in later addendum. 
 
Question 11: If the load is overweight who is responsible for penalties? 
 
Answer 11: It is the drivers’ responsibility to haul legal loads.  If he has questions about the loads weight he 

should have the load weighed and excess off loaded if necessary.  Overweight loads have not 
been an issue overall. The sludge loads are usually quite consistent in density and weights are 
readily estimated by volume.  

 
Question 12: How many trailers are currently operating at each site? 
 
Answer:  12 Noonday uses four trailers and Northwest uses 3-4 trailers historically.  In both cases, there are 

times when there is need to catch up on an inventory buildup for one reason or another when 
more trailers may be called in.  This is an urgent situation and requires very quick response 
relative to getting additional trailers to the job. 

 
Question 13: Bid Bond Requirement (Yes or No?) 
 
Answer 13: NO 
 
Question 14: Could I get a daily sludge production sheet for the last 2 months? 
 
Answer 14: See attached Excel Spreadsheet. 
 
 
Question 15: Are there chemical analyses available for the sludge? 
 
Answer 15: Attached are chemical analysis reports for each of the two WRFs. 
 
 



















Noonday, August '11 Sludge Hauling Report Noonday, '11 Sludge Hauling Report

Date Manifest # Ticket # Trailer # D Tons Date Manifest # Ticket # Trailer # D Tons
1-Aug 1-Sep 3 65
1-Aug 1-Sep
1-Aug 1 19 1-Sep
2-Aug 4 85 2-Sep
2-Aug 2-Sep
2-Aug 5-Sep
3-Aug 2 37 5-Sep
3-Aug 5-Sep
3-Aug 6-Sep 3 23
3-Aug 7-Sep 4 84
3-Aug 7-Sep
4-Aug 1 19 7-Sep
5-Aug 1 20 7-Sep
5-Aug 7-Sep
5-Aug 8-Sep 3 40
8-Aug 8-Sep
9-Aug 1 20 9-Sep
9-Aug 9-Sep
9-Aug 9-Sep

10-Aug 1 21 9-Sep
10-Aug 12-Sep 1 22
11-Aug 4 82 13-Sep 2 42
11-Aug 13-Sep
12-Aug 3 63 13-Sep
12-Aug 13-Sep
12-Aug 13-Sep
15-Aug 14-Sep 3 59
15-Aug 2 40 14-Sep
16-Aug 4 89 14-Sep
16-Aug 15-Sep 3 60
17-Aug 1 22 15-Sep
17-Aug 16-Sep 3 66
17-Aug 16-Sep
18-Aug 3 61 16-Sep
18-Aug 16-Sep
18-Aug 19-Sep 2 44
19-Aug 19-Sep
19-Aug 20-Sep 2 45
20-Aug 20-Sep
22-Aug 20-Sep
22-Aug 21-Sep 4 89
23-Aug 2 45 21-Sep
23-Aug 21-Sep
23-Aug 21-Sep
24-Aug 4 84 21-Sep
24-Aug 22-Sep 3 55
24-Aug 22-Sep
25-Aug 3 64 22-Sep
25-Aug 22-Sep
25-Aug 22-Sep
26-Aug 23-Sep
26-Aug 23-Sep
26-Aug 26-Sep 1 19
26-Aug 26-Sep
29-Aug 1 16 26-Sep
29-Aug 27-Sep 3 59
30-Aug 3 60 27-Sep
30-Aug 28-Sep 3 61
31-Aug 4 79 28-Sep
31-Aug 28-Sep
31-Aug 28-Sep

29-Sep 2 42
Totals: 45 926 29-Sep

30-Sep 2 36
30-Sep
30-Sep
30-Sep

Totals: 47 911



Northwest Monthly Sludge Hauling Report Northwest Monthly Sludge Hauling Report

Date Manifest # Ticket # Trailer # D Tons Date Manifest # Ticket # Trailer # D Tons
1-Aug 482894 958528 24 22.58 1-Sep 482954 964113 21 20.07
1-Aug 482895 958651 40 22.08 1-Sep 482952 946080 39 19.91
1-Aug 482896 958709 24 23.12 1-Sep 482953 964071 31 21.76
2-Aug 446588 958784 27 21.95 2-Sep 482955 964255 22 20.55
2-Aug 446589 958777 43 21.83 2-Sep 482956 964317 30 21.99
2-Aug 482897 958877 42 21.8 5-Sep 482957 954430 34 23.5
3-Aug 482899 959126 24 20.92 5-Sep 482959 964455 39 22.9
3-Aug 482898 959067 26 21.48 5-Sep 482958 964440 36 23.63
3-Aug 482901 959204 26 20.71 6-Sep 482960 964608 25 18.84
3-Aug 482902 959259 37 22.29 7-Sep 482963 964789 39 19.86
3-Aug 482900 959136 34 21.16 7-Sep 482964 964804 32 21.21
4-Aug 482903 959395 34 16.49 7-Sep 482961 964756 36 18.59
5-Aug 482904 959518 26 19.63 7-Sep 482962 964718 34 19.73
5-Aug 482905 959484 33 20.54 7-Sep 446637 964689 21 21.62
5-Aug 482905 959484 33 20.54 8-Sep 482966 964994 33 21.17
8-Aug 482906 959900 27 22.97 8-Sep 482965 964936 34 22.14
9-Aug 482907 960088 33 21.66 9-Sep 482969 965096 34 21.41
9-Aug 482909 960151 43 22.52 9-Sep 482967 965110 25 20.48
9-Aug 482908 960166 42 21.43 9-Sep 482968 965113 24 19.84

10-Aug 482910 950229 39 20.85 9-Sep 482970 965154 29 20.99
10-Aug 482911 960372 33 20.11 10-Sep 472971 965252 42 20.9
11-Aug 482913 960503 34 19.8 13-Sep 482975 965656 24 21.99
11-Aug 482912 960537 39 23.24 13-Sep 482973 965596 27 20.99
12-Aug 482914 960742 21 20.17 13-Sep 482976 965696 37 21.16
12-Aug 482915 960819 34 21.72 13-Sep 482972 965616 25 20.67
12-Aug 482916 960857 26 20.62 13-Sep 482974 965564 28 22.69
15-Aug 482917 960962 35 20.2 14-Sep 482978 965863 42 21.15
15-Aug 482918 961105 31 19.69 14-Sep 482977 965800 34 21.21
16-Aug 482919 961234 35 19.52 14-Sep 482979 965914 37 21.37
16-Aug 482921 961375 37 20.98 15-Sep 482980 966003 32 19.96
17-Aug 482923 961602 39 20.56 15-Sep 482982 955075 35 19.87
17-Aug 482922 961525 35 20.79 16-Sep 482981 966143 42 18.56
17-Aug 482920 961538 25 21.85 16-Sep 482983 966166 28 20.87
18-Aug 482926 961881 40 21.25 16-Sep 482984 966255 31 21.1
18-Aug 482924 961766 35 21.51 16-Sep 482986 966452 35 20.97
18-Aug 482925 961870 33 22.15 19-Sep 482987 966522 31 20.87
19-Aug 482927 962009 36 20.89 19-Sep 482985 955536 42 20.3
19-Aug 482928 962045 22 20.64 20-Sep 482988 966619 26 19.85
20-Aug 482929 962153 38 21.09 20-Sep 482989 966605 37 21.62
22-Aug 482930 962221 40 20.87 20-Sep 482990 955750 42 20.11
22-Aug 482931 962377 22 20.48 21-Sep 482992 955908 26 19.69
23-Aug 482932 962551 28 19.47 21-Sep 482991 966846 37 20.16
23-Aug 482933 952543 40 20.57 21-Sep 482992 966908 26 19.69
23-Aug 482934 962621 22 20.3 21-Sep 482993 966931 23 21.32
24-Aug 482937 962848 43 19.8 21-Sep 482994 966984 37 20.32
24-Aug 482936 962786 25 21.3 22-Sep 482995 967070 43 19.92
24-Aug 482935 962768 31 22.18 22-Sep 482996 967101 22 20.04
25-Aug 482939 962980 41 21.19 22-Sep 446669 967174 39 22.46
25-Aug 482940 963070 32 18.18 22-Sep 446667 967013 40 19.89
25-Aug 482938 963018 38 21.8 22-Sep 446668 967087 31 17.78
26-Aug 482941 963121 39 22.09 23-Sep 482997 967281 43 18.09
26-Aug 482944 963292 39 21.63 23-Sep 482998 967358 27 18.55
26-Aug 482942 963155 40 21.29 26-Sep 482999 967512 23 19.45
26-Aug 482943 963253 20 20.43 26-Sep 483000 967936 43 19.99
29-Aug 482945 963497 22 20.15 26-Sep 483001 967640 28 19.24
29-Aug 482946 963526 20 20.83 27-Sep 483002 967682 22 17.86
30-Aug 482947 963665 23 20.6 27-Sep 483003 967851 39 20.57
30-Aug 482948 963731 21 21.12 28-Sep 483004 967887 22 19.55
31-Aug 482950 963795 31 21.88 28-Sep 482005 967888 27 19.4
31-Aug 482949 963867 21 20.46 28-Sep 483006 967992 24 21.59
31-Aug 482951 953940 37 20.93 28-Sep 483007 968034 27 19.2

29-Sep 483008 968095 30 19.98
Totals: 60 1,258.30 29-Sep 483009 968233 24 20.57

30-Sep 483011 968274 34 20.69
30-Sep 483010 968337 30 21.8
30-Sep 483012 968381 22 21.62
30-Sep 483013 968428 20 20.42

Totals: 66 1,356.17
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